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in thousands of naira 2017 2016 Increase/
{decrease} %

Revenue 244,151,411 181,810,977 34%

Prafit before income tax 46,828,682 21,548,408 117%

Profit for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968 326%

Declared dividend* 13,816,406 15,060,469 32%

Share capital 396,328 396,328 0%

Total equity 44,878,177 30,878,075 45%

Data per 50k share

Basic earnings MA42.55 Ni0

Declared dividend MZ25.00 N1%.00

Net assats N36.62 N38.96

Dividend per 50k share in respect of

current year resuits only

Interim dividend declared N15.00 -

Final dividend proposed™* N27.50 N10.00

Stock Exchange Information

Stock exchange guotation at 31 December

in Naira per share M1,555.98 N810.00 92%

Number of shares issued {"000) 792,656 792,656 0%

Market capitalisation at 31 December {N: million} 1,233,365 642,052 92%

* Declared dividend represents the interim dividend declared during the year (N13.00 and N2.00 from the
palance of the pioneer profits as at 31 December 2015 and retained earnings as at 31 Decemhber 2015
respectively) and final dividend proposed for the preceding year but declared during the current year.

** The directors proposed a final dividend of N27.50 (2016:N10.0G) per share on the issued share capital of
792,656,252 (2016:792,656,252) ordinary shares of 50k each, subject to appraval by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.
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1 Financial 5Statements
The directors present their annual report on the affairs of Nestlé Nigeria Plc ("the Company"”), together
with the financial statements and independent auditor's report for the year ended 31 December 2017,

2 Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company continue to be the manufacturing, marketing and distribution of
food products including purified water throughout the country. The Company alse exparts some of its
products to other countries within and outside Africa.

3 Operating Results
The following is a summary of the Company’s operating results:

2017 2016

N'000 #'00C
Revenue 244,151,411 181,910,577
Results from operating activities 55,698,373 38,213,337
Profit before income tax 46,828,582 21,548,408
Profit for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,723,730 7,924,963

4 Dividend
The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of N27.50 (2016: N10.60} per share having
earlier declared an interim dividend of N15.00 {composed of N13.00 and N2.00 from the balance of the
pioneer profits as at 31 December 2015 and retained earnings as at 31 December 2015 respectively)
{2016: Nil} on the issued share capital of 792,656,252 (2016:792,656,252) ordinary shares of 50k each, #f
the proposed dividend of N27.50 is approved by the shareholders, it will be subject to deduction of
withholding tax at the applicable rate.

5 Directors and Their Interests

(a) The directors who served during the year and their interests in the shares of the Company at the

year end were as follows:
Interest in the Ordinary Shares

Appointed/ of the Company

(Resigned) 2017 2016
Mr. David ifezulike - Chairman 56,255 56,255
Mr. Mauricio Alarcon {Mexican) - MD/CEQ Nil il
Mir. Syed Saifut 1slam (Bangladeshi) (31/12/2017} Nii 1,610
Mr. Jagdish Singla (India) 1/1/2018 il Nij
Mr. Kais Marzouki {German) Nil Nil
Mr. Ricardo Chavez (Mexican} Mit Mil
Mrs. Ndidi Okonkwo Nwuneli Nil ]
Mr. Gbenga Oyebode il Nil

{b) Mr. Gbenga Oyebode, was the Non-Executive Chairman of Access Bank Plc, one of the Company's
pankers and a Non-Executive Director of MTN Nigeria Communications Limited (MTN), one of the
telecommunication service providers of the Company. In accordance with Section 277 of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, he has notified the Company of his position with
Access Bank Pic and MTN to the Board.

{c) No share options were granted to the directors by Nestie Nigeria Plc. However, Nesilé 5. A, the
ultimate parent company has a share based payment scheme offered to certain key management
personnel including certain directors of the Company. Jnformation relating to this share based
payment scheme is disclosed in Note 26 to the financizl statements.
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6 Records of Directors’ Attendance
Further to the provisions of Section 258(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, the
Record of Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings held in 2017 is available at the Annual General
Meeting for inspection,

7 Analysis of Shareholdings

Number of Number of
shareholders % shares %
1 - 1,000 18,364 63.63 5,535 .70
1,001 - 5,000 7,116 24.66 16,327 2.06
5,001 - 10,000 1,681 5.86 11,560 1.46
10,001 - 50,000 1,357 4.70 26,594 3.36
50,001 - 100,000 148 Q.51 10,164 128
100,001 - 500,000 127 0.44 26,913 3.40
500,001 - 1,000,000 27 0.09 20,027 2.53
1,000,001 and above 31 0.11 150,978 19.05
28,861 99.997 268,097 33.82
Nestlé S.A, Switzerland * 1 0.003 524,555 66.18
28,862 100 792,656 100

* Apart from Nestlé S.A, Switzerland, with 524,559,457 ordinary shares (representing 66.18%) and
stanbic IBTC Nominees Limited with 9.50%, no other shareholder held 5% or more of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017.

8 Preperty, plant and equipment
Information relating to changes in property, plant and equipment is diselosed in Note 15 to the financial
statemeants.

9 Donatinns
The value of gifts and donations made by the Company during the year amounted to N2,088,000 {(2016:
N8,778,000) and analysed as follows:

2017

N'0CO

Product donation to Internaily Displaced Persons (IDP) Camps via the AFBTE 986
Product donation to Kokuma Qladipa Memoriat foundation 375
Product donation to Marie Louse College 318
Agbara Divisienal Police 240
Product denation to Health Writers Association of Nigeria 86
Product donation to Capital Market Correspondents Assoc. of Nigeria 83
2,088

in compliance with Section 38(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, the Company did
not make any donation or gift fo any political party, political association or for any political purpose
during the year.

(n addition to the above mentioned donations, the Company continued with its strong focus on creating
shared values initiatives.
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10 Nestlé Nigeria Trust {CPFA) Limited {"NNTL")
Nestlé Nigeria Trust (CPFA) Limited {'NNTL'} previously catied Nestlé Nigeria Provident Fu ng Limited, was
incorporated by the Company and is a duly registered Closed Pension Fund Administrator whose sole
activity is the administration of the pension and defined contribution gratuity scheme for both
employees and former employees of Nestlé Nigeria Plc.

11 tocal Sourcing of Raw Materials
On a continuing basis, the Company explores the use of local raw materials in its production processes
and has successfully introduced the use of locally produced items such as soya bean, maize, cocoa, palm
olein and sorghum in a number of it products.

12 Major Distributors
The Company's products are distributed through various distributors that are spread across the whote
country as stated on page <»»» of the Annual report and financial statermnents.

13 Suppliers
The Company procures all of its raw materials on a commercial basis from overseas and local suppliers.
Amongst the overseas suppliers are companies in the Nestlé Group.

14 General Licence Agreement
The Company has a genera! licence agreement with Societe des Produits Nestlé S.A., Nestec S.A. and

Nestlé S.A., all based in Switzerland. Under the agreement, technologicai, scientific and professional
assistance are provided for the manufacture, marketing, quality control and packaging of the Company’s
products, development of new products ang training of personne! abroad. Access is also provided to the
use of patents, brands, inventions and know-how.

The Company obtained the appraval of the Nationa! Office for Technoiogy Acquisition and Promotion
(NOTAP} with certificate No. CR 005823 for the remittance of General ticence Fees to Societe des

Produits Nestlé 5.A., Nestec S.A. and Mestlé S.A. The approval is for a geriod of three (3) years with effect
from 1st January 2015 to 31st December 2017

15 Acguisition of Own Shares
The Company did not purchase any of its own shares during the year,

16 Emptoyment and Employees
{(a} Employment of physically challenged persons:

it is the policy of the Company that there is no discrimination in considering applications for
employment including those of physically chailenged persons. The Company had 18 (2016: 14)
physically challenged persons in its employment as at 31 December 2017.

All employees whether physicaily challenged or not are given egual opportunities to develop their
expertise and knowledge and qualify for promotion in furtherance of their careers. In the event of
members of staff becoming physically challenged, every effort is made to ensure that their
employment with the Company continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy
of the Company that training, career development and promaotion of physically challenged persons

should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employees.
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(b)

{c)

Health and safety at work and welfare of employees:

The Company invests its resources to ensure that hygiene on its premises is of the highest
standard. In this regard, the Company has, on three occasions, won the Manufacturers’ Association
of Nigeria’s award for the best kept factory and on three occasions won the Federal Environmental
Protection Agency’s environmental performance award as the most environment-friendly
company in Nigeria. The work environment is kept conducive and as safe as possible,

The Company operates its own clinics which provide quick health care to its employees. In pursuit
of efforts to improve health infrastructure and enhance the quality of care for the employees, the
company has built a new ultra modern clinic at Agbara factory. The new cfinic which is fully
equipped with state-of-the-art medical facilities consists of three consulting roems, one pharmacy,
one laboratory and two observation rocoms, amongst others.

The modernization of the medica! facilities by the Company is in line with Nestlé Corporate
Business principles of promoting safe and healthy work environment far the employee.

in addition, the Company retains a number of registered private hospitals run by qualified medical
doctors to whom serious cases of illness are referred for treatment.

The Company caters for the recreational needs of its employees by providing them with a wellness
center and other games facilities such as Table Tennis, Draughts, etc. Lunch is provided free to staff
in the Company's canteen.

Emnployees involvement and training:

The Company places consideratle value on the involvement of its employees and has continued
the practice of keeping them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on various
factors affecting the performance of the Company. Employee representatives are consulted
regularly on a wide range of matters affecting their current and future interests.

Circulars and newsletters on significant corporate issues are published. Regular briefing sessions
are also held at corporate and operational levels to enhance exchange of information.
Management, professional and technical expertise are the Com pany's major assets. The Company
continues to invest in developing such skills. The Company has in-house training facilities,
complemented, when and where necessary, with external and everseas training for s employees.
This has broadened opportunities for career development within the organisation.

in addition, we have graduated three{3) sets of technical students from Nestle technicat training
center (NTTC). The multi-skill engineering training runs for period of 18 months.The total number
of those who have so far completed the programme till date is forty-six (46). The cost of the
training was fully paid by our Company. The success of the TCC in our Agbara factory has spurred
us on to replicate and adapt the TCC model in our Nestle Waters factory in Abaji.

The content of the course was based on the syllabus of City and Guilds of London Technicians
Examinations Certificates in Engineering, one of the world’s leading vocational education
organizations. To empower the trainees with relevant skills, the top five (5} students in the scheme
were taken to Switzerland for further training within the Group's factories. In order to reduce
unemployment, eight (8) of the thirteen {13) graduates from the first batch, thirteen (13)
graduates from the second batch and alt the twenty {20) graduates from the third batch were
given employment by our Company. The other graduates from the first and secand batch are in full
time empioyment with other organizations.

This TTC program contributes to the increase in the overall technology know-how in Nigeria and
the pool of employable technical persons as the students also act as technology ambassadors after
they have completed their training programme.
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17

18

18

20

21

Remuneration Comimittee

The remuneration committee, which consists of three directors namely Mr, David Hezulike, Mr. Kais
Marzouki and Mr. Ricardo Chavez were appointed by the Board of Directors to submit recommendaticns
on the salaries of executive directors to the Board for approval.

Audit Committee

In accordance with section 35%{4) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, members of the
audit committee of the Company were elected at the Annual General Meeting heid on 23 May 2017.
Members that served on the audit committee during the year comprise:

Mr. Matthew Akinlade (Chairman) Shareholders’ Representative

Alhaji Kazeem Qwonikoka Bello Shareholders’ Representative

Mr. Christopher Nwaguru Shareholders’ Representative

wirs. Ndidi Okonkwe Nwuneli Directors’ Representative

Mr. Ghenga Cyebode Directors’ Representative

Mr. Ricardo Chavez Directors’ Representative -Appointed 1/2/2017

Risk Management Committee

The Committee is to assist the Board in its oversight of the risk profile, risk management framework and
the risk reward strategy. The Committee is to carry out periodic review of changes in the economic and
business environment, including emerging trends and other factors relevant to the Company’s risk
profile. Messrs. Oyebode, Chavez and Islam served on the committee.

Effectiveness of internal Control System

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the assets of the Company. The system of internal control is to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities,

There is an effective internal control and audit function within the Company which gives reasonable
assurance against any material misstatement or loss. The responsibilities include oversight functions of
internal audit and control risk assessment and compliance, continuity and contingency planning, and
formalisation and improvement of the Company’s business processes.

Bisclosures

a) Borrowings and Maturity Dates
The details of the barrowings and maturity dates are stated in Note 24 to the financial statements.

b} Risk Management and Compliance System
The directors are responsible for the total process of risk management as well as expressing their

opinion on the effectiveness of the process. The risk management framewaork is integrated into the
day-to-day operations of the business and provides guidelines and standards for administering the
acceptance and on-going management of key risks such as operational, reputational, financial,
market, technology and compliance risk, The directors are of the view that effective internal audit
function exists in the Company and that risk management control and compliance system are
operating efficiently and effectively in all respects.

The Company has a structured Risk Management process in place and undertakes at l2ast annually
a thorough Risk Assessment covering all aspects of the business, The Risk Assessment is based on
the two criteria “Business Impact” and “Likelihood of Occurrence”. For every identified Business
risk, mitigating measures are impiemented by the Company.
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{e} Leadership and Personal Respansibility

Our success is based on our people. We treat each other with respect and dignity and expect everyone
to promote a sense of personal responsibility, We recrutt competent and motivated people wha respect
our values. We provide equal apportunities for our employees’ devefopment and advancement. We
protect our employees’ privacy and do not tolerate any form of harassment or discrimination.

The long-term success of the Company depends on its capacily to attract, retain and develop employees
able to ensure its growth on a continuing basis. We pravide equa!l cpportunity in our resourcing drive.
The Nestlé policy is to hire staff with personal attitudes and professional skills enabling them to develop
a long-term relationship with the Campany.

(f) safety and Health at Work
We are committed to preventing accidents, injuries and illness related to work, and to protect
employees, contractors and others involved along the value cham. We recognise and require that
everyone piays an active role in providing a safe and healthy environment, and promote awareness and
knowledge of safety and health to employees, contractors and other people related to or impacted by
aur husiness activities by setting high standards.
We have Clinics in our Factories, Distribution Centre and Head Office. The Clinics at the factories
operate 24 hours service, Also we have Hospitals listed on retainer basis with the company for our
employees and their family use. No major industriat accident occurred during the period under review.
Al the injured employees have since resumed their normal duties. An accident is classified as major if
the affected person is not able to resume work after 3 days. Efforts are being made by the Management
and the Safety, Health and Environment Officers at the various sites to curtail industrial accidents
through increased training on safety to both staff and contractors. The target of the Company is to
ensure that there is no major accident.
We provide basic HIV/AIDS training to pur employees. Alsa, we provide training and basic information
to staff on prevention and treatment of serious diseases, On periodic basis, we invite medical experts
and health institutions to make available free screening exercise to enabte employees know their status
in respect of serious diseases and provide the treatment required. We do not discriminate against or
disengage any employee on the basis of his or her HIV/AIDS status. The Company makes the above
facilities available to staff through the retained clinics.

{g} supplier and Custemer Relations
We reguire our suppliers, agents, subcontractors and their employees to demonstrate honesty, integrity
and fairness, and to adhere to our nan-negotisble standards. In the same way, we are committed to our
own customers,
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{h) Agriculture and rural development
We contribute ta improvements in agricultural production, the social and economic status of farmers,
rural communities and in production systems to make them mare environmentalty sustainable.

{i} Environmental sustainability
We commit ourselves to environmentally sustainable business practices. At all stages of the product iife
cycle, we strive to use natural resources efficiently, favour the use of sustainably-managed renewable
resaurces and target zero waste,
We invest continuously to improve our environmentat performance. The Nestié Policy on Enviranmentat

Sustainability incorporates the United Natians Global Compact’s three guiding principles on
anvironment (Principle 7 on support for precautianary approach ta environmental chalienges; Principte
8 on the need to undertake initiatives to promote environmentat responsibility and Principle 9 on the
need to encourage the development and diffusion of environmentally friendly technologies). QOur four
ariority areas are: water, agricultural raw materials, manufacturing and distribution of our products and
packaging. We implement our policy through the Nestié Environmental Management System. We
believe that environmental performance is a shared responsibility and requires the cooperation of all
parts of society. We are determined to always provide leadership within our sphere of influence,

{j} water
We are committed to the sustainable use of water and continuous improvement in water management.
We recognise that the world faces a growing water challenge and that responsible management of the
world’s resources by all water users 1s an absolute necessity.

Number, diversity, training initiatives and development of employvees
As at 31 December 2017, the staff strength of the Company was 2201 {2016: 2,325). Our employees are

made up of male and female from different parts of the country. Every employee is given equal
opportunity for promotion purely on the basis of merit. We provide both experienced based learning
and classroom trainings in Nigeria and overseas. Presently, we have 22 (2016: 18) of our staff on
overseas’ assignments in Ghana, Cote D' veire, Switzerland, Senegal, Dubai, South Africa and Germany
in order to give them the required exposure to enable them take up higher rasponsibilities.

Bribery and corruption

We condemn any form of bribery and corruption. Our employees must never, directly ar through
intarmediaries, offer or promise any personal or improper financial of other advantage in order to
obtain or retain a business or other advantage from a third party, whether public or private. Nor must
they accept any such advantage in return for any nreferential treatment of a third party. Moreover,
employees must refrain from any activity or behavior that could give rise to the appearance or suspicion
of such conduct or the attempt thereof.

13
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23 Insider Trading

The directors of the Company and senior employees who are in possession of price sensitive
information are prohibited from dealing with the shares of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Investments & Securities Act 2007 and the Listing Rules of the Nigerian Stock
Exchange. As required by law, the shares held by directors are disclosed in the annual report. Our
Company has securities trading policy applicable and circulated to directors, insiders, external advisers
and all employees that may at any time possess any inside or material information about our Company.
The securities trading policy is also available on the website of the Company.

Our Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transaction by the directors on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Listing Rules of the Nigerian Stock Exchange.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors whether they have complied with the required
standard set out in the listing rules and the Company's code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors and the Company is not aware of any non-compliance.

24 Notable Awards received in 2017
In recognition of Nestle Nigeria as a distinguished sector player in the manufacutring industry and its
consistent performance in spite of the prevailing economic climate, Nestle was awarded the Food
Product Manufacturing Company of the year (Seasoning cubes and Cocoa beverage) for our innovation
in MAGGI Naija Pot and MILO RTD respectively.

25 Independent Auditors
The firm of Deloitte and Touche have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors in
accordance with Section 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Allied Act CAP C20 Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria, 2004.

Dated this 1st day of March 2018.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

|

Bod:e Ayeku

Company Secretary/Legal Adviser
FRC/2012/NBA/00000000637
22-24, Industrial Avenue

llupeju,

Lagos.
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Nestlé Nigeria Plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
For the preparation and approval of the Financial Statements

The Directors of Nestlé Nigeria Plc are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2017, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended, in compliance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria,
the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for:

o properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

o presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

e providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the
Company's financial position and financial performance; and

e making an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for:
o designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls throughout the
Company;
e maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company, and
which enable them to ensure that the financial statements of the Company comply with IFRS;

» maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with the legislation of Nigeria and IFRS;
» taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company; and

o preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern:
The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no
reason to believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 were approved by directors on

1st March, 2018 :
5 LA @Rk

’ Signed on behalf of the Directors of the Co

‘David Ifezulike /" Mauricio Alarcon k. Gbemisola Osunleke
(Chairman) (Managing Director]/ (Financial Accounting Manager)
FRC/2013/NIM/00000003355 FRC/2017/NIM/00000016043 FRC/2012/ICAN/00000000424
1 March 2018 1 March 2018 1 March 2018
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AUDIT COMMITTEE OF

Nestié Nigeria PLC gceso

22-24, INDUSTRIAL AVENUE, ILUPEJU
P.M.B. 21164, IKEJA, NIGERIA

TELEPHONES: 01- 2798184, 2798188
2790707

REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NESTLE NIGERIA PLC

In accordance with the provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied
Matters Act, (CAP. C20), Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004, we have examined
the Auditor's Report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we required.

In our opinion, the Auditor's Report is consistent with our review of the scope and
planning of the Audit. We are also satisfied that the Accounting and Reporting policies
of the Company are in accordance with legal requirements and agreed ethical
practices. Having reviewed the Auditor's findings and recommendations on
Management matters, we are satisfied with management responses thereon.

We acknowledge the cooperation of the Auditor, Messrs. Deloitte & Touche (Chartered
Accountants), Management and staff of the Company in performing our duties.

Dated this 15t day of March, 2018
Lagos, Nigeria

Matthew Akinlade

Chairman, Audit Committee.
FRC/2013/ICAN 00000002111

Members:
Mr. M. Akinlade (Chairman), Mr. C. Nwaguru, Mr. R. Chavez (Mexican), Mr. G, Oyebode, Mrs. N. Nwuneli, Alh. K. O. Bello



Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Shareholders of Nestié Nigeria Plc

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nestlé Nigeria Plc which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flow for the year then
ended, and the notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Nestlé
Nigeria Plc as at 31 December 2017 and the financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, the Companies and Allied
Matters Act Cap C20 LFN 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Cur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nigeria Professional Code of Conduct and Guide for Accountants (ICAN
Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements
in Nigeria. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN Code and
in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Nigeria. The ICAN
Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (Parts A and B},

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
far our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a wholg, and in forming our opinicn therecn, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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The Company provides its Distributors
volume based incentives to drive sales.

Debited to the Revenue disclosed in Note @
to the Financial Statements is an amount of
N10.9billion as sales incentives paid to the
Distributors during the year by the
Coempany.

The assumptions with the most significant
impact in the assessment of sales
incentives were border around:
o Achievement of cash collection
targets
¢ Achievement of sell cut targets
s Achieavement of seil in targets

Judgement is required by the Directors in
assessing the incentives amount accruable
to Distributors.

Accordingly, for the purposes of our audit,
we identified the assessment of incentives
amount as key audit matter.

Our audit procedures incorporated a combination of
a test of the Company’s controls relating to

incentives and  substantive procedures. In
addressing the risk, we performed the following:

We evaluated the company’s model for
calculating customer incentives to ensure that all
models applied have been approved by the
Board of Directors and have been applied
accurately and consistently.

« Obtained an understanding and documentation
of the incentive schemes currently used by in the
Company.

¢ Reviewed and tested controls with respect to the
apphication and irmplementation incentives,

» Verified for that customers that benefited from
the incentive scheme{s) have met the criteria set
out by the board of directors

« We reviewed the data used by management in
the computation of the incentive balance to
ensure it is accurate and complete.

« Verified accuracy of incentives calculated for
selected customers, and that they were in line
with the terms of the approved scheme(s).

s We also verified the utilization of the incentive
amounts per quarter to the Distributor credit on
a sample basis.

Our testing did not reveal any material
misstatement and we concur with the company’s
application of the incentive models approved by the
Directors of the Company.
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There are various complexities relating to the We involved tax specialists in the engagement
treatment and recognition of current and deferred to evaluate the tax provisions and potential

tax, in particular: exposures, with a particular focus on the

management’s treatment of PPE, allowable

¢ The tax treatment of property related items, and disallowable expense and income and

i.e. leasehold improvements and fixtures and  assumptions used by management in
fittings, is significantly different from the estimation of current and deferred taxes.

accounting treatment. Accordingly, there is

o . . ; o i d th
significant judgement involved in determining We reviewed the data used by management

in estimation of current and deferred taxes

tax and deferred tax. and agreed them to audited numbers.

o The determination of whether to recognise
deferred tax assets is dependent on the We concurred with the management’s
directors’ assessment of the utilisation of the  determination of the estimated manner in
losses and the timing of realising temporary which timing differences will be realised.
differences, which requires significant

We assessed the presentation and disclosure
in respect of taxation related balances and

o _ . considered whether the disclosures refiected
As a result, taxation is considered a key audit 40 risks inherent in the accounting for the
matter due to the complexities and judgement taxation balances.

arising from the considerations relating to the

calculation, recognition, and classification of current Our audit testing, including the review carried
and deferred tax balances and the materiality of the by tax specialist did not reveal any
balances in relation to the financial statements as a material misstatements.

whole.

judgement.

The accounting policies on taxes are disclosed on
Note 3 (0}, and information on current and deferred
taxes are disclosed in Notes 13 and 19,

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ Report, Audit Committee’s Report, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report. The other information does not include the financial statements and cur auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financiai statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date

of this auditor's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

17
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Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materiai if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statememts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal contiol.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order ta design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Company’'s financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Deloitte.

We communicate with the audit committee and the directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide the audit committee and directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee and the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the benefits derivable
by the public by such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Sixth Schedule of Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004 we
expressly state that:

i) We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and
believe were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

i) The Company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of
those books.

i) The Company'’s financial position and its statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

==

k\_(};
o™y -

h¢
Michael Osinloye, FCA - FRC/2013/ICAN/00000000819
For: Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
2 March, 2018
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Mestié Nigeria Plc
Annua! Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Tagether with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

Statement of Profit or loss and Comprehensive Income

In thousands of naira

Note 2017 2016
Revenue 9 244,151,411 181,810,977
Cost of sales 11{b] (143,280,260) {106,583,385)
Gross Profit 100,871,151 75,327,592
Marketing and distribution expenses 11{b} {35,157,152) {28,775,263)
Administrative expenses 11({b) {10,015,626) (8,338,992}
Results from operating activities 55,698,373 38,213,337
Finance income 6,239,371 4,195,314
Finance costs {15,109,062} {20,864,243)
Net finance cost 10 (8,869,691} {15,664,929)
Profit before income tax 11 46,828,682 21,548,408
Income tax expense 13(a} (13,104,952) (13,623,240)
Profit for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968
Other comprehensive income - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968
Profit for the year is attributable to:
Owners of the company 33,723,730 7,924,968
Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to;
QOwners of the company 33,723,730 7,924,568
Earnings per share M N
Basic earnings per share 14 {a) 42.55 10.00
Diluted earnings per share 14 (b) 42.55 10.00

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Nestlé Nigeria Plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

Statement of Financial Position

In thousands of naira

Note 2017 2016
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 72,377,943 70,171,526
Long term receivables 17 1,921,232 1,678,251
Total non-current assets 74,299,175 71,849,777
Inventories 20 23,910,303 20,637,750
Trade and other receivables 21 31,430,450 24,035,411
Prepayments 18 2,025,346 1,711,842
Cash and cash equivalents 22 15,138,854 51,351,152
Total current assets 72,504,953 97,736,155
Total assets 146,804,128 169,585,932
Equity
Share capital 23 (a)(ii) 396,328 396,328
Share premium 23 (a)(iii) 32,262 32,262
Share based payment reserve 23 (a)(iv) 147,236 126,480
Retained earnings 44,302,351 30,323,005
Total Equity 44,878,177 30,878,075
Liabilities
Loans and borrowings 24 9,564,664 10,384,341
Employee benefits 25 2,275,921 2,103,744
Deferred tax liabilities 19 10,404,871 5,186,338
Total non- current liabilities 22,245,456 17,674,423
Bank Overdraft 22 3,714,087 154,582
Current tax liabilities 13(b) 15,098,670 15,489,634
Loans and borrowings 24 10,913,246 40,130,375
Trade and other payables 28 49,055,624 64,662,096
Provisions 27 898,868 596,747
Total current liabilities 79,680,495 121,033,434
Total liabilities 101,925,951 138,707,857
Total equity and liabilities 146,804,128 169,585,932

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE-’E}OARD.-OF DIRECTORS BY:

David Ifezulike

(Chairman)
FRC/2013/NIM/00000003355
Mauricio Alarcon

(Managing Director)
FRC/2017/NIM/00000016043
Gbhemisola Osunleke

(Financial Accounting Manager)
FRC/2012/ICAN/00000000424

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Nestié Nigeria Plc
Annual Report and Financial Staternents -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

Statement of Cash Flows

in thousands of naira

Note 017 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 15 6,485,547 5,976,340
Net loss on foreign exchange transactions 10 11,168,652 16,286,826
Net finance cost (2,298,961) 378,003
Equity settled share based payment transactions 26 78,832 85,185
Provisions for other long term employee benefits 25 (a) 556,369 (85,411}
{Gain}/loss on sale of property, ptant and eguipment {19,281} 42,213
Incame tax expense 13{a) 13,104,952 13,623,440
62,799,840 44,230,674
Changes in long term receivables (242,881) {326,055)
Change in inventories {3,272,553) {9,823,790)
Change in trade and cther receivables {7,395,039) 410,585
Change in prepayments {313,504) {1,186,637)
Change in trade and other payables (excluding dividend payable) {23,922,352) 33,051,880
Changes in provisions 302,121 {15,087)
Cash generated from operating actlvities 27,955,532 66,337,570
income tax paid 13 (b) {8,277,383) (4,551,484)
Other long term employee benefit paid 25{a} (384,192) {152,058}
Share based payment recharge paid [58,076) (109,181)
Nat cash in flow from operating activities 19,235,881 61,484,847
Cash flow from investing activities
Finance income 10 6,239,371 4,199,314
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment 42,931 25,829
Acguisition of property, plant and equipment 15 (8,715,614} (7,067,737)
Met cash used in investing activities (2,433,312) {2,842,594)
Cash flow from financing activities
eroceeds from loans obtained-- Intercompany loan 4,886,800 7,968,000
-- Bank loan - -
Repayments of barrowings -- Intercompany loan (41,241,015} (4,364,138}
-- Bank loan (1,502,620} {1,502,620)
Change in import finance loan 24 - -
Finance cost paid {7,285,033) (2,089,933)
Dividends paid 23{b) (11,428,504) (20,081,454)
Net cash used in financing activities (56,574,372} (20,070,185}
Net (decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents {39,771,803) 38,572,068
Cash and cash equivalent at lanuary 1 51,196,570 12,624,502
Cash and cash equivalent at December 31 22 11,424,767 51,196,570

The accompanying notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Nestlé Nigeria Plc
Annua! Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports
Notes to the financial statements

1 Reporting entity
Nestlé Nigeria Plc {"the Company"} is a Company domiciled in Nigeria. The address of the Company's
registered office is at 22-24, Industrial Avenue, Hupeju, Lagos. The Company is listed on the Nigerian Stock
Exchange.
The principal activities of the Company cantinue to be the manufacturing, marketing and distribution of
food products including purified water throughout the country. The Company also exports some of its
products to other countries within Africa.

2 Basis of accounting
{a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. They were authorised for
issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 1 March 2018,

{b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following;

© Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
@ the present value of the defined benefit obligation relating to long service awards
o Inventory at lower of cost and net realisable value

{c} Functionol and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Naira, which is the Company’s functional currency, Alf
financial information presented in Naira has been rounded to the nearest thousand except where
atherwise indicated.

{d} Changes in accounting Estimate
On 1 January 2016, the Company re-assessed the useful life of leasehold land from the term of the
lease {99 vears) to unlimited. The Company believes that the leasehold interest in land is in substance
simitar to ownership of land and therefore should not be depreciated.
This change in accounting estimate was applied prospectively in accordance with I1AS 8 Accounting
Policy and Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error.

3 Significant accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these
financial statements.
Set out below is an index of the significant accounting policies, the details of which are available on the

pages that follow.
Page Number

a) Foreign currency 25
b} Financial instruments 25
¢} Praperty, plant and equipment 26
d) Intangible assets 27
e} Leased assets 28
f) Inventories 28
g} Impairment 29
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Mestlé Nigeria Pl
Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors’ and Auditor's Reports
Notes to the financial statements

h) Employee benefits 30
i} Provisions 31
i} Contingent liabilities 32
k) Statement of cash flows 32
!} Revenue 32
m) Advance payment to contractors 32
n) Finance income and finance costs 32
o) income tax 32
p) Earnings per shate 33
q} Segment reporting 33
r} Dividends 33
s) Government grants 34
t) Related parties 34

a) Foreign currency transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are transtated and recorded in Naira at the actual
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the rates of
exchange prevailing at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on maenetary items is the difference
between amorfized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Foreign currency differences arising
on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

b) Financial instruments
i. Non-derivative financial assets

The Company initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are
ariginated. All other financial assets are recognized tnitially on the trade date at which the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a
transaction in which substantiaity all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is
recognized as a separate asset or liability.
The Company’s non-derivative financiat assets are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise
intercompany receivables and trade and other receivables.
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Nestlé Nigeria Plc
Annuat Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three
months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayablie on demand and form an integrat part of the
company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivatents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.

ii. Non-derivative financiol liabilities
AH financiai liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire,
The Company has the foliowing non-derivative financial liabilities: Joan and borrowings, bank
overdrafts, trade and other payables. Such financial liabiities are recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities
are measyred at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Ifl. Share cupital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

¢} Property, plant and equipment

I. Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of certain items of property, plant and equipment at 1
January 2011, the Company's date of transition to IFRS, was determined with reference to its fair
value at that date.

Cost includes expenditure that is girectly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. items of
property, plant and eguipment under construction are disclosed as capital wark-in-progress. The cost
of constructian recognised includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any cther costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to & working condition for their intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and barrowing
costs on qualifying assets.

purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of the equipment.

when parts of an item of property, plant and eguipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
and are recognised in prafit or loss.
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1. Subsegquent casts
The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
fiow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and eguipment are
recognised in profit or loss as ingurred.

M. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount
substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment which reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated
aver the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term in which tase the assets are depreciated

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

= buildings 25- 35 years
» plant and machinery 10 - 25 years
» motor vehicles 5 years
= furniture and fittings S years
« |T equipment 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted if appropriate. Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated. The attributable cost of each
asset is transferred to the relevant asset category immediately the asset is available for use and
depreciated accordingly.

Land has unlimited usefut life so it is not depreciated

lterns of PPE classified as independent Power Plant {IPP) consists of certain asset classes as specified
above and depreciation has been charged on the same basis as stated above.

—

d) tntangible assets

. Software
Purchased software with finite useful life is measured at cost jess accumulated amertisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

I}, Stubsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefiis embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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il Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its

Amortisation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful fives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are avaitable for use, since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset. The estimated useful tife for the current and comparative periods is as follows:

Computer software 5 years

amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

g} Leased assets
Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantialty all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Upen inttial recognition the feased asset is measured at an amount
equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments, Subsequent
to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting poticy appiicable to
that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the Company's
statement of financtal position.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in grofit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease.

f] Inventories

Inventory is measured at the fower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventery includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventory, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. Cost incurred in bringing each

product to its present location and condition is based on:

—

Raw and. packaging materials and purchase cost on a first- in, first - out basis including

purchased finished goods  transportation and clearing costs

Products-in-process and - weighted average cost of direct materials and labour plus a

manufactured finished goods reasonable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on
normal levels of activity

Engineering spares - purchase cost an a weighted average cost basis, including
transportation and clearing costs

Goods-in-transit - purchase cost incurred to date

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, ess the estimated
costs of conversion and selling expenses.

Engineering spares are classified as inventory and are recognised in the profit and foss account as
consumed.

Allowance is made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where appropriate.
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g) lmpairment
L. Financial assets {including receivables)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets {including equity securities) are impaired can include default
or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the
Company would not consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, or
the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity
security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of
impairment.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset and collective
tevel. All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individuaily
significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
jmpairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Receivables that are not individualty
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together receivables with similar risk
characteristics.

in assessing collective impairment the Campany uses historical trends of the arabability of default,
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to
whethar current ecanamic and credit conditions are such that the actual fosses are likely to be greater
or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calcuiated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and
reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be
recognized through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent ¢vent causes the amount of
impairment loss ta decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed thraugh profit or toss.

1L Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives or that are not yet availabie for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each
year at the same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present vahie using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit {CGUY. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smaltest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets ar groups of assets {the “cash-generating unit, or CGU").
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. impairment losses recognized
in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit {group of units) on a pro
rata basis.
in respect of other assets {excluding Goodwill for which impairment loss is not reversed), impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased ar no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

h

—t

Employee benefits

I. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan 1s 3 post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the period during which services are rendered by
employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

The Company has the following defined contribution plans: defined contribution gratuity scheme and
pension fund scheme.

1 Defined contribution gratuity scheme
The Company has a defined contribution gratuity scheme for its Nigerian employees, which is funded.
Under this scheme, a specified amount in accordance with the Gratuity Scheme Agreement is
contributed by the Company and charged ta the profit and loss account over the service life of the
employees. These employees’ entitlements are calculated based on their actuzl salaries and paid to
Nestlé Nigeria Trust {CPFA} Limited ("NNTL”} each month.
NNTL previously calied Nestlé Nigeria Provident Fund Limited was incarporated by the Company and is
a duly registered closed pension fund administrator whose sole activity is the administration of the
pension, gratuity and defined contribution gratuity scheme for both employees and former employees
of Nestlé Nigeria Plc.

2 Pension fund scheme
In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Company instituted a defined
contripution pension scheme for its entire Nigerian Staff. Staff contributions to the scheme are funded
through payroll deductions while the Company's contributions are charged to the profit and loss
account. The Company's contribution is 10% for all senior staff, junior staff and temporary staff while
employees contribute 854 of their monthly emolument (basic, housing and transport).
il. Other long term emplayee benefits (long service awards)

Long service awards accrue to employees hased on graduated periods of uninterrupted service. These
benefits accrue over the service life of the employees. The charge to the profit and loss account is
based on independent actuarial valuation performed using the projected unit credit method. Ernest &
Young (FRC/2012/NAS/00000000738) was engaged as the independent actuary in the current year.
Actuarial remeasurements are recognised in the profit and loss in the year in which they arise.
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Hi. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is committed demonstrably,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate empfoyment
hefore the normal retirement date, or to provide termination henefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination henefits for veluntary redundancies are recognised as
an expense if the Company has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probakle that the offer
will be accepied, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. if benefits are payable
more than 12 months after the reporting period, then they are discounted to their present vaiue.

iv. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.
A liabifity is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit
sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

V. Shore-based payment transactians
Nestié S.A., the ultimate holding company of Nestlé Nigeria Plc operates an equity incentive scheme,
Restricted Stock Unit Plan (RSUP) for its management employees whereby it awards shares to
deserving employees.
The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recagnised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity as a capital contribution from Nestlé S.A,,
over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards.
A recharge arrangement exists between Nestlé S.A. and Nestlé Nigeria Plc whereby vested shares
delivered to employees' are recharged. The recharge transaction is recognised as an intercompany
liability with a corresponding adjustment in equity for the capital contribution recognized in respect of
the share-based payment.
The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the
related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related
service and non-market conditions at the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non-
vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect such
conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.
Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services and has no
obligation to settle the share-based payment transaction are accounted for as equity-settied share-
based payment transactions, regardless of the equity instrument awarded.

i) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated retiably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settie the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.
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j} Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible abligation that arises from past events and whaose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the centrol of the company, or a present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embaodying econamic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.
Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial
position.
(f the likelinood of an outflow of resources is remote, the possible obligation is neither a provision nor
a contingent liability and no disclosure is made.

k} Staternent of cash flows
The statement of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. Changes in statement of financial
positian items that have not resulted in cash flows such as translation differences, fair value changes,
equity-settled share-based payments and other non-cash items, have been eliminated for the purpose
of preparing the statement. Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders are included in financing
activities. Finance cost is also included in financing activities while finance income received is included
in investing activities.

I} Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goads in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair vatue of the
consideration received ar receivable, net of value Added Tax, sales returns, trade discounts and
volume rebates.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists that the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been ftransferred to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible returns of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goads, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it
is probable that discount will be grantecd and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount
is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.

m] Advance payment to contractors
Advance payments represents payments made to contracters for ongaing construction projects as the
year end date.

i} Finance income and finance costs
Net finance cast includes interest expense on borrowings as welt as interest income on funds
Net finance cost also includes other finance income and expense, such as exchange differences on
loans and borrowings and unwinding of the discount on provisions.
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

0} Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Current tax and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using
tax rates statutorily enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
peferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based an the laws that have been statutorily enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legaily enforceable right te offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis ar their tax assets and liabilities wilt be realised simultaneously.

Deferred tax is provided for using the liability method, which represents taxation at the current rate of
corporate tax on all timing differences between the accounting values and their corresponding tax
values. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the amount will be utiised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

-

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own
shares hetd. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own
shares held, for the effects of ali dilutive potentiat ordinary shares.

P

—

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company's other companents. All operating segmerits’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Company's Board of Directors {BOD} to make decisions about respurces to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is

q

available.

The Company's primary format for segment reporting is based on business segments. The business
segments are determined by management based on the Company's internal reporting structure.
Segment results, assets and liailities, that are reported to the BOD includes items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Unaliocated items comprise mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company's head office}, head
office expenses and income tax assets and liabilities, net finance cost and amartisation of intangible
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as liahility in the period they are declared.

Dividends which remained unclaimed for a period exceeding twelve {12) years from the date of
declaration and which are no longer actionable by shareholders in accardance with Section 385 of
Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria are written back to retained earnings.

—

r
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s} Government grants
Government grants are recognised at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be recaived. Grants related to
income are recognized as deferred income and allocated into profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the entity recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grant is
intended to compensate.
The benefit of a government loan at below market rate of interest is treated as a government grant
related to income.
The fair value of the government loan at below market rate of interest is estimated as the present
value of all future cash flows discounted using the prevailing market rate{s) of interest for a similar
instrument with a similar credit rating. The benefit of the government grant is measured as the
difference between the fair value of the loan and the proceeds received.

1t} Related parties
Related parties include the holding company and other group entities. Directors, their close famity
members and any employee who is able to exert a significant influence on the operating policies of
the Company are also considered to be refated parties. Key management personnet are also regarded
as related parties. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any
director {whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

4 Operating segments

{a) Basis of segmentation
The Company has two reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic
business units. The strategic business units offer different products and services, and are managed
separately because they require different technelogy and marketing strategies. Far each of the
strategic business units, the Company’s Board of Directors [BOD) review internal management reports
on a quarterty basis. The following summary describes the operations in each of the Company’s
reportable segments:

Segment Dascription

Food This includes the production and sale of Maggi, Cerelac, Nutrend, Nan,

Lactogen and Golden Morn.

Beverages This includes the production and sale of Milo, Chocomilo, Nido, Nescafe and
Nestlé Pure Life.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as described in Notes 3.

Information regarding the resuits of each reportable segment is included helow. Performance is measured
based on segment profit before income fax, as included in the internal managemeni reports that are
reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors. Segment profit is used to measure performance as
management believes that such information is the most retevant in evaluating the resuits of certain
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

34



Nestlé Nigeria Pic
Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor’s Reports

Nates to the financial statements

5 Application of new and revised international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs}

5.1

5.2

New and revised IFRSs/IFRICs affecting amounts reported and/or disclosures in these financial

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendments te IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting
period that begins on or after 1 January 2017,

Amendments to 1AS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The
amendments require an entity to provide disciosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes.

The Company's fiabilities arising from financing activities consist of loans and borrowings. A
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of the loans and borrowings is provided in
note (24d). Apart from the additional disclosure in note {24d}, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The Company has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year. The
amendments clarify how an entity should evaluate whether there will be sufficient future taxable
profits against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference.

The application of these amendments has had no impact on the Company’s financial statements as
the Company already assesses the sufficiency of future taxable profits in a way that is consistent
with these amendments.

New and revised 1FRSs in issue but not yet effective

A number of new Standards, Amendments to Standards, and Interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 lanuary 2017 and early application is permitted; however, the
Company has not applied the new or amended standards in prepariog these financial statements.
Those Standards, Amendments to Standards, and Interpretations which may be relevant to the
Company are set out below:

tFRS 8 Financial Instruments’

1FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and measurement of Share-hased Payment
Transactions™

[FRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’

Amendments to I1AS 40 Transfers of investment Property’

IFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 fanuary 2018, with earlier application
permitted.
’Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, with earlier application
permitied,
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{FRS 9 Financiat Instruments

On 24 July 2014, the 1ASB issued the final IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard, which replaces
earlier versions of IFRS 9 and completes the IASB's project to replace 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement .

IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, a
new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general
hedge accounting regquirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39.

The Company is yet to carry-out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial application
of IERS 9 could have on its business; however, the Company will adopt the standard for the year
ending 31 December 2018.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard replaces [AS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets
from Customers and 5iC-31 Revenue

This standard combines, enhances and replaces specific guidance on recognizing revenue with a
single standard.

It defines a new five-step model to recognize revenue fram customer contracts. The Company has
undertaken a review of the main types of commercial arrangements used with customers unger
this model and has tentatively concluded that the application of IFRS 15 will not have a material
impact on the results or financial position. The Company is yet to carry-out an assessment to
determine the impact that the initial application of IFRS 15 could have on its business; however, the
Company will adopt the standard for the year ending 31 December 2018.

Amendments to IFRS 2: Classification and measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
Currently, there is ambiguity over how a company should account for certain types of share-based
payment arrangements. The tASB has responded by publishing amendments to (FRS 2 Share-based
Payment .

The amendments cover three accounting areas:

Measurement of cash-settled share-based poyments

Classification of share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings

Accounting for a modification of o share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settfed

The new reguirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of thase arrangements —
and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognised for new and outstanding awards.

The Company will adopt the amendments for the year ending 31 December 2018.

iFRIC 22: Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
The amendments provide guidance on the transaction date to be used in determining the exchange
rate for translation of foreign currency transactions invoiving an advance payment or receipt.

The amendmants clarifies that the transaction date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises the prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For
transactions involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a
separate transaction date.
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The interpretation applies when a Company:
- pays or receives consideration in a foreign currency; and
- recognises a non-monetary asset or liability — eg. non-refundable advance consideration —
hefore recognising the retated item.
The Company will adopt the amendments for the year ending 31 December 2018.

Amendments to 1AS 40: Transfers of Investment Property
The IASB has amended the requirements of 1AS 40 Investment Property on when a Company
should transfer a property to, or from, investment property
The amendments state that a transfer is made when and onty when there is a change in use - i.e.
an asset ceases to meet the definition of investment property and there is evidence of a change in
use. A change in management intention alone does not support a transfer.
A company has a choice on transition to apply:
- the prospective approach — i.e. apply the amendments to transfers that occur after the date
of initial application — and alsa reassess the classification of property assets held at that
- the retrospective approach — i.e. apply the amendments retrospectively, but only if it does
not involve the use of hindsight
The Company will adopt the amendments for the year ending 31 December 2018,

IFRS 16: Leases
(FRS 16 replaces IAS 17 teases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-
15 Operating Leases ~ Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invelving the
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’} and the supplier {lessor'). IFRS
16 aliminates the classification of leases as operating leases or finance leases as required by 1AS 17
and introduces a single lessee accounting model. Applying that model, a lessee Is required to
recognise.

a. assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the

underlying asset is of low value; and

b. depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease Habilities in the profit or loss.
For the lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and 10
account for those two types of leases differently.
The Company is yet to carry out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial application
of IFRS 16 could have on its business; however, the Company will adopt the standard for the year
ending 31 December 2018,
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Notes to the financial statements

& Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management ta make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policles and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The management of the Company revises its estimates and assumptions on a regular basis
to ensure that they are relevant regarding the past experience and the current economic and political
environment. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed oan an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected. The accounting for certain provisions, certain financial instruments and the
disclosure of financial assets, contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements is
judgmental. The items, subject to judgment, are detailed in the corresponding notes to the financial
statements.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accaunting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements are discussed below:

6.1 Critical accounting judgements
6.1.1 Allowance for credit losses

The Company periodically assesses its trade receivables for probability of credit losses. Management
considers severa! factors including past credit record, current financial position and credibility of
management, judgment is exercised in determining the allowances made for credit losses.

Provisions are made for receivables that have been outstanding for more than 60 days, in respect of

which there is no firm commitment to pay by the customer.
Furthermore all balances are reviewed for evidence of impairment and provided against once

recovery is doubtful. These assessments are subjective and involve a significant element of judgment
by management on the ultimate recoverability of amounts receivable.

6.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

6.2.1 Provisions far employee benefits
The actuarial techniques used to assess the value of the defined benefit plans involve financial
assumptions (discount rate, rate of return on assets, medical costs trend rate} and demographic
assumptions {salary increase rate, employee turnover rate, etc.). The Company uses the assistance of
an external independent actuary in the assessment of these assumptions. For more details refer to
note 25.

6.2.2 Estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
The Company’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge
for its items of property, plant and equipment on an annual basis. The Company has carried out a
review of the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2017 and that has not highlighted any requirement for an adjustment to the residual values and
remaining useful lives of the assets for the current or future periods. For more details refer to note 3c.

6.2.3 Valuation of deferred tax
The recognition of deferred tax assets requires an assessment of future taxable prafit. Deferred tax
assets are only recagnised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The availability of future taxable profits
depends on several factors including the Company's future financial performance and if necessary,
implementation of tax planning strategies.
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Notes to the financial statements

8 Geographical information
in thousands of naira

Nigeria

Niger

Chad

Togo

Ghana

Senegat
Guinea

Cther countries

Nestlé Nigeria Plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements - 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

2017 2016

Non-current MNon-current
Revenue assets Revenue assets
241,122,642 74,299,175 180,004,058 71,848,777

135,773 - 62,727 -

- 38,537 -

2,648,664 - 974,510 -

39,518 -

517,254 -

244,332 - 274,373 -
244,151,411 74,299,175 181,910,977 71,849,777

In presenting information on the basis of Geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical
lacation of the customers and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Major customer

Revenue from one customer does nat represent up te 10% of the company's total revenue. Therefore,
information on major customers is not presented.

9 Revenue

Revenue for the year which arose from sales of goods comprise:

in thousands of nairg
Nigeria
Export

Total Revenue
10 Net finance cost

in thousands of nairg
Interest income on bank deposits
Finance income

interest expense on financiat liabilities
Net foreign exchange loss

Finance expense

Net finance cost

2017 2016
741,122,642 180,004,058
3,028,769 1,906,915
244,151,411 181,910,977
2017 2016
6,239,371 4,159,314
5,239,371 4,199,314
(3,940,410)  (4,577,317)
(11,168,652) (16,286,926
(15,109,062)  (20,864,243)
(8,869,691)  {16,664,929)

tncluded in interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is interest expense on
intercompany lcan amounting to approximately N2,233 miftion {2016: N2,377 million } excluding the

impact of foreign exchange differences.

40



Nestlé Nigeriz Pl¢
Annyal Report and Financiat $Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors’ and Auditor's Reports

Notes to the financial statements

11 Profit before income tax

{a) Profit hefore income tax is stated after charging or {crediting}:

in thousonds of nairo Note 2017 2016
Depreciation 15(a) 6,485,547 5,976,340
Auditor’s remuneration 35,000 32,400
Directors’ remuneration 12 {c) 280,531 194,628
Personnel expenses 12 {a} 22,758,609 20,817,867
{Gain)/Loss on property, plant and eguipment dispesed {19,281} 42,213
Net foreign exchange loss 10 11,168,652 16,286,926
General ficence fees 32({b) 9,204,212 6,862,380
{b} Expenses by nature
in thousands of naira Note 2017 2016
Depraciation 15¢a) 6,485,547 5,976,340
Impairment toss on property, ptant and equipment 15{a} - -
Auditor's remuneration 35,000 32,400
Personnel expenses 12{a) 22,758,609 20,817,867
General licence fees 32{b}) 9,204,212 6,862,380
Raw materials and consumables 97,524,888 75,447,982
Distribution expense 8,698,034 6,879,419
Advertising 2,987,477 2,283,654
Sales Promotion 12,437,875 8,473,058
Factory overheads 16,218,612 13,015,142
Other expenses 12,102,775 3,909,398
188,453,039 143,697,640
Summarised as follows:
Cost of Sales 143,280,260 106,583,385
Marketing and distribution expenses 35,157,152 28,775,263
Administrative expenses 10,015,626 8,338,992
188,453,038 143,697,640

41



Mates to the financial statements

12 Personnel expenses

Nestié Nigeria Plc

Annual Repart and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

{a} Personne! expenses for the year comprise of the following:

in thousands of nairo

Salaries, wages and allowances
Contributions to compulsory pension fund scheme

Contributions to defined contribution gratuity scheme
Employee short term bonus

Training, recruitment and canteen expenses

Medical expenses

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions 23
OCther personne! expenses

11

2017 2016
11,322,223 10,967,121
1,104,584 1,069,498
1,213,670 1,068,450
1,470,175 1,704,998
1,319,165 1,232,529
495,828 631,548
78,832 85,195
5,754,132 4,058,487
22,758,609 20,817,867

(b) Employees of the Company, whose duties were whotly or mainly discharged in Nigeria, received
remuneration {excluding pension costs and certain benefits} in the following ranges:

M

1,400,001 -
1,600,001 -
1,800,001 -
2,000,001 -
2,500,001 -
3,000,001
3,500,001
4,000,001
4,500,001 -
5,000,001 -
7,000,001 and

The number of full-time persons employed per function as at 31 December was as follows:

Production

Supply chain

Sales and marketing
Administration

above

1,600,000
1,800,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000
4,580,000
5,000,000
7,000,000

2017 2016
Number Number
22 21
8 3
47
12 101
110 180
230 563
509 358
287 153
183 237
402 341
428 321
2,201 4,325

2017 2016
Number Number
1,657 1,751
70 99
318 331
156 144
2,201 2,325
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{c) Girectors remuneration
Remuneration paid to directors of the Company was as follows:
in thousands of naira

Fees:
Non Executive directors
Executive directors

The directors’ remuneration shawn above includes:
In thousands of naira

Chairman

Highest paid director

Other directors received emoluments in the following ranges:

M M
- 1,000,000
1,000,001 25,000,000
25,000,001 35,000,000

Above 35,000,000

13 Taxation
(a) Income tax expense

The tax charge for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and
incame, which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises:

In thousgnds of naira
Current tax expense

Current period income tax
Current period tertiary education tax
Reversal of aver-provision of prior year tax

peferred tax [credit)/expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total income tax expense

2017 2016
5,100 6,100
274,431 188,528
230,531 184,628
2017 2016
2,300 2,300
104,815 74,145
2017 2016
Number Mumber
3 3
2 3
5 6
2017 2016
7,364,786 13,741,050
742,171 1,259,600
{220,538) -
7,886,419 15,000,650
5,218,533 (1,377,210}
13,104,852 13,623,440
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{b) Current tax liabilities

{€)

L.

Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

in thousands of naira 2017 2016
Mavement in current tax liabilities account during the year was as follows
At 1 January 15,489,634 5,040,468
Charge for the year 7,886,419 15,000,650
Payments in the year (8,277,383) {4,551,484)
At 31 December 15,098,670 15,488,634
Recondiliation of effective tax rate
2017 2017 2016 2016

in thousands of naira
Profit for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968
Total income tax expense 13,104,952 13,023,440
Profit excluding income tax 46,828,682 21,548,408
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax
rate 30.00% 14,048,605 30.00% 6,404,522
Non-deductible expenses™ 0.00% - 0.00% -
Tax exempt income 0.00% - 0.00% -
Tax incentives {0.48%) (223,387) {1.82%) {391,352)
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax credit {0,745%) {348,766) {2.14%) {461,429)
Other income retated taxes 1.58%5 742,171 5.85% 1,259,600
Prior year (over}/under provision of CiT (0.47%%) {220,538) 4.33% 932,857
Tax effect of changes in pioneer tax relief status  (1.96%) {918,550} 27.30% 5,883,393
Other tax differences 0.05% 25,417 {0.30%) {64,111}

27.98% 13,104,952 63.22% 13,623,440

In 2011, the Nigerian Investment Premotion Council {NIPC) granied the Company a pioneer status for a
five year period with respect to the following businesses of the Company.

commencement production date of T August 2010.

. New Flowergate factory with an effective commencement production date of 1 January 2011 and;
. Agbara factory capacity increase projects with respect to specific products, with an effective

The effective commencement praduction dates were certified by the Industrial inspectorate Depariment
of the Federal Ministry of Trade and Investment on 12 October 2011. in accordance with the provisions of
the Industrial Development {Income Tax Relief) Act, the Company's profit attributable to the pioneer line
of business is therefore not liable to income taxes for the duration of the pioneer pericd.

The Agbara factory capacity increase pioneer status expired on 31 July 2015 while that of New Flowergate

Factory expired on 31 December 2015,
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14 Earnings and declared dividend per shate
a} Basic earnings and declared dividend per share are based on profit attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year of N33,923,131 (2016: M7,524,967,942) and declared dividend of N18,816
million{2016: N15,060,469,000) respectively and on 792,656,252 (2015: 792,656,252} ordinary shares of
50 kobgo each, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and ranking for dividend
during the year.

Note 2017 2016
N'OCO N'000
Earnings from continuing operations for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 33,723,730 7,924,968
Earnings from continuing operations for the purpese of
diluted earnings per share 33,723,730 7.924 968
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number {'000) Number {'000)
as at 31 December 23 792,656 792,656
Basic {Naira) 42.55 10.00
Diluted {Naira) 42.55 10,00

{b} Diluted earnings per share of N42.55 (2016: }10.00) is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of N33,723,731 {2016 ¥47,924,968), and on the 792,656,252 {2016: 792,656,252 ordinary
shares of 50 kobo each, being the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and ranking for
dividend during the current and preceding years after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive Nil {2016:
Nit) potential ordinary shares.
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Netes to the financial statements

(b} independent Power Plant

(e

e

Included as part of property plant and equipment is independent power plant. The carrying amount
of the independent power plant at the end of the year is presented below:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016
Cost 4,216,760 4,216,804
Additions 26,450 -
Disposal during the year - (44}
Accumulated depreciation (1,212,150} {1,073,149)
Carrying amount 2,031,060 3,143,611
Capital commitments

Capital expenditure commitments at the year-end authorised by the Beard of Directors comprise:

in thousands of naira 2017 2016

Approved and contracted 5,097,267 145,703

Approved but not contracted 10,988,234 11,681,003
16,085,501 11,827,706
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Notes to the financial statements

16 Intangible assets
The movement on this account during the year was as follows:

17

18

In thousands of naira
Cost

Balance at 1 January 2016
Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 lanuary 2017
Balance at 31 December 2017

Amortisation

Batance at 1 January 2016
Amartisation for the year
Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 lanuary 2017
Amortisation for the year
Balance at 31 December 2017

Carrying amounts

Balance at 1 January 2016
Balance at 31 December 2016
Balance at 31 December 2017

Nestié Nigeria Plc

Annual Repart and Financtal Statements -- 31 December 2017
Together with Directors’ and Auditor's Reports

Note

11 {a)

11{a}

There were no additions or disposal during the year.

Long term receivables

Software

525,950

526,950

526,950

526,950

526,950

526,950

526,950

526,950

Long term receivables represents long-term portion of loans granted to the Company’s employees, which
are secured by the employees’ final entitiements and retirement benefits with Nestlé Nigeria Trust {CPFA)

Limited. (See Note 21)

Prepayments
Prepayment comprises;

in thousands of naira
Rent prepaid
Imsurance prepaid
Other prepayment

2017 2016
524,370 669,120
267,308 282,921

1,233,668 759,801
2,025,346 1,711,842

Other prepayment represents mainly infrastructurat scheme paid for during the year, but for which the
underlying asset will not be consumed until a future period.
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Notes to the financial statements

20 Inventories
In theusands of naira

Raw and packaging materials
Product in process

Finished producis
Engineering spares

Goods in transit

Nestié Nigeria Plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 Decernber 2017
Together with Directors' and Auditor's Reports

2017 2016
10,888,704 7,834,712
1,011,414 564,668
8,005,726 7,646,120
3,910,687 3,103,150
93,772 1,489,100
23,910,303 20,637,750

The value of raw and packaging materials, changes in finished products and product in process
consumed during the year and recognised in cost of sales amounted to N95.525 bitlion (2016: #75.448
billion ). In 2017, the write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to N1,413 million

{2016: ¥ 288 million} and the movement is included in cost of sales.

21 Trade and other receivables

in thousands of naira Nate
Trade recelvables 29(a)(ii)
Loans to key management personnel 29 {a}{n),32
Staff loans 29(a)(ii)
Trade receivables due from related parties 32{e){i)
Deposit with Company registrars for dividend

Loans and receivables

Advance payment to suppliers

Depaosit for Import

Other receivables

Non-current - reclassified to long term receivables 17

Curremi

2017 2016
9,528,763 7,328,483
39,754 8,417
2,361,785 2,089,397
2,768,999 1,753,156
1,724,951 1,190,610
16,824,252 12,370,063
10,380,123 8,513,575
5,248,908 463,314
898,399 4,366,710
33,351,682 25,713,662
1,921,232 1,678,251
31,430,450 24,035,411
33,351,682 25,713,662

The Company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses related to trade and other

receivables are disclosed in Note 29.

22 Cash and cash equivalents
in thousands of nairg
Cash and bank balances
Short term investment
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash fiows

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is disclosed in Note 29,

23 Capital, reserves and dividends
{a} Ordinary shares
{i} Authorised ardinary shares of 50k each
in number of shares

At 31 December

2017 2016
11,583,410 4,287,186
3,555,444 47,063,966
15,138,854 51,351,152
(3,714,087) (154,582}
11,424,767 51,196,570
2017 2016
792,656,252 792,656,252
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(i} lssued and fully paid ordinary shares of 50k each

In number of shares 2017 2016
At 31 December 792,656,252 792,656,252
Nominal value {In thousands of naira) 396,328 396,328

Holders of these shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at the general meetings of the Company.

{iii) Share premium

In thousands of Naira 2017 2016
The premium on the 782,656,250 ardinary shares of 50 kobo each is as follows:
Share premium 32,262 32,262

{iv) Share hased payment reserves
The share based payment reserve comprises the cumulative weighted average fair value of
performance stock unit plan granted to deserving employees which have not vested at the end of the
year.

The movement in share based payment is as follows:

In thousands of naira 2017 2016

At 1 January 126,480 150,466

Share based payment contribution 78,832 85,195

Share based payment recharge (58,076) {109,181)

At 31 December 147,236 126,480
{h] Dividends

{i) The fallowing dividends were deciared by the Company during the year:

2017 2016
Per Share {N) N'000 Per Share (M) R'000
Final dividend 10 7,926,563 19.00 15,060,469
interim dividend 15 11,889,843 - -
25 19,816,406 19.00 15,060,469

Total dividends represents the interim dividend declared during the year plus the final dividend
proposed for the preceding year, but declared in the current year.

After the respective reporting dates, the following dividends were proposed by the board of directors.
The dividends have not been recognised as liabilities and there are no tax implications.

017 2016
MNaira per qualifying ordinary share 27.50 10.00
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(i) Movement in dividend payable

in thousands of naira Notes 2017 2016
Al 1 January 4,738,681 9,250,194
Dectared dividend 19,816,406 15,060,469
Unclaimed dividend transferred to retained earnings {72,022) {30,488}
Payments {131,428,504) {20,081,494)
At 31 December 28 12,554,561 4,238,681

As at 31 December 2017, N1.725 miltion (2016: N1.191 million) of the total dividend payable is held with
the Company’s registrar, GTL Registrars Nigeria Limited. 7.763 million represents 2017 interim dividend due
to Nestle SA yet to be paid as at 31 December 2017. The balance of 3.066 million represents unclaimed
dividend {2016: N3.04 hiltion) which was returned to the Company by the Registrar and has been invested
in treasury bills,

24 loans and borrowings
{a) This note provides infarmation about the contractual terms of the Company's interest-hearing ioans
and borrowings. For information about the Company’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and
liquidity risks, see note 25.

Loans and borrowing as at 31 December is as follows:

in thousands of naira 2017 2016
Secured bank loans 2,462,140 3,964,762
Loans from retated party 18,015,770 4p,54%9,054

20,477,910 50,514,716

toans and barrowings are analysed into short and long term liabilities based on the time the
repayment obligation falls due as follows:

2017 2016

Current liahilities 10,913,246 40,130,375
Non-current liabilities 9,564,664 10,384,341
20,477,910 50,514,716
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25 Employee Benefits
Other long term employee benefits
Other lang term employee benefits represents the present value of unfunded iong service award given to
deserving members of staff of the Company.

The movement in the present value of the other long term employee benefits during the year was as

follows:

in thousands of Naira 2017 2016
Balance at 1 January 2,103,744 2,382,213
Expense/{income) for the year 556,369 {86,411)
Payments during the year {384,192) {192,058)
Balance at 31 December 2,275,921 2,103,744

Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages) fall under two
broad categories, These assumptions depict management's estimate of the likely future experience of
the Company.

Financial Assumptions

2017 2016
Long term average Discount rate {p.a.) 14% 16%
Average Pay Increase (p.a.} 10% 10%

bemographic assumptions

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.

Mortality in Service

The rates of mortality assumed for employees are the rates published in the A67/70 Ultimate Tables,
published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in the UK, This is due to unavailability of
published reliable dermographic data in Nigeria.

Sample age Number of deaths in year out of 10,009 lives
2017 2016

25 7 7

30 7 7

35 g g

40 14 14

45 26 26

Withdrawa! from Service
Withdrawal from service means retirement; voluntary or compulsory disengagement from service.

Age Band Rate

2017 2016
Less than or egual to 30 4.0% 4,0%
31-34 4.0% 3.1%
35-39 3.0% 3.0%
40 —-54 2.0% 2.0%
55-59 1.0% 1.0%
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sensifivity analysis
Reascnably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, hoiding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the employee benefit obligation by the amount shown

below.

31 December 2017 Employee benefit obligation
Effect in thousands of Naira Increase Decrease
Discount Rate {1% movement) {128,495) 143,195
Future salary growth [1% movement) 145,382 {132,844)
Life Expectancy {1% movement) (6,200} 5,138

{b} Pension payable
The balance on the pension payable account represents the amount due to the Pension Fund
Administrators which is yet to be remitted at the year end. The movement on this account during the
year was as follows:

in thousands of Naira 2017 2016
Balance at 1 January 5,328 159,939
Charged for the year 1,988,275 2,064,738
Payments during the year (1,978,337} (2,219,345)
Batance at 31 December 15,266 5,328

Pension Payable is included in other payables and accruals in Note 28

26 Share-based payments
The Company’s ultimate holding company, Nestlé Switzeriand (Nestlé S.A.) operates an Equity Incentive
Scheme for its management employees around the world known as the Performance Share Unit Plan
{PSUP). Under the PSUP, Nestlé S.A. awards Performance Stock Units (PSU} to employees that entitle
participants to receive freely disposable Nestlé 5.A. shares or an equivalent amount in cash at the end of
a three-year restriction period.
Terms and conditions of the Restricted Share Unit Plan
The terms and conditions relating to the grants of the PSUP are as fallows;

Number of Vesting

Grant date/employees entitled instruments Conditions
Shares awarded to key management on 1 March 2015 4,795 3 years’ service
Shares awarded to key management on 3 March 2016 4,111 3 years' service
Shares awarded to key management on 1 March 2017 3,442 3 years' service
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The fair value of the PSU is determined on the basis of the market price of Nestlé S.A. shares at grant
date, adjusted for the present value of dividends that participants are not entitled to receive during the
restricted period of 3 years. The weighted average fair value at the date of exercise of the restricted
stock units granted in 2017 is N85,215,108 {2016: N62,546,992)

Total share based payment expense recognised in the profit or loss for the year amounted to
N78,832,117 (2016: N85,195,193). See Note 12.

27 Provisions
in thousands of nairg
Provisions represent management's estimate of the Company's probable expasure to tax and other
liabilities at the end of the year.

2017 2016

Balance at 1 January 596,747 615,834
Provisions made during the year 397,997 73,924
Provisions used during the year (95,876) {93,011}
Balance at 31 December 898,868 596,747
Current 898,868 596,747
898,868 596,747
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28 Trade and other payables

in thousands of naira Note 2017 2016
Trade payables 14,209,270 10,638,818
Other payables and accruals 13,245,531 11,173,706
Trade payables due to related parties 320exi) 2,046,212 38,610,891
Dividend payable 23(bii} 12,554,561 4,238,681

49,055,624 64,662,096

The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is disclosed in
nate 29.

29 Financial instruments
{a} Financial Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
= credit risk {see {a){ii)
liquidity risk {see {a}{iH)
e market risk (see (a}{iv)
e operational risk (see {a){v)

{1} Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monstoring the Company’s risk management pelicies. The committee
reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and te monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Company's activities. The Campany, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their rales and obligations.

The Company Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company Audit Commitiee is assisted in
its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to both senior Management
and the Audit Committee.

{W} Credit risk
credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a8 customer or a counterparty to & financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company's receivable
from customers ar investment in debt securities.
The Company’s principal exposure o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer.
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Management has established a customer/distributor activation process under which each new
customer Is analysed individually for credit worthiness before the Company’s distributorship agreement
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered to seal the distributorship
arrangement. The Company’s review includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases bank
references.

Purchase limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount
withaut requiring approval frem the National Sales Manager {NSM); these limits are reviewed quarterly,
Customers that fall to meet the Company's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the
Company only on a cash or prepayment basis. The Company’s payment and delivery terms and
conditions offered to customers provide various credit limits based en individual customers.

The Company also initiated a financing tripartite agreement with the Company’s bankers and some
selected custemers. The objective of this agreement is to ensure consistent cash inflow from custorners
for goods purchased. The Company’s most significant customers have been activated on this financing
scheme for over two years and this has reduced losses incurred on trade receivables.

tn monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics,
including whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a wheolesale, retail or end-user
customer, geographic location, industry, aging profile, maturity and existence of previous financial
difficulties.

Trade and other receivables refate mainly to the Company's wholesale customers. Customers that are
graded as "high risk” are placed on a restricted customer list and monitored by the NS, and future
sales are made on a cash or prepayment basis.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number
of parties. Cash and cash equivalents are placed with banks and financial institutions which are
regidated,

The Company has an order approval matrix which provides guidelines for the various approval
authorisation limits for customers, based on the risk grading of the customer and the percentage by
which the customer exceeds his credit limit. The approval respensibility is allocated to the Financial
Accounting Manager, Finance and Cantrol Director and other Senior officials.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred lgsses in
respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss
component that relates to individuaily significant exposures, and a collective loss component
established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not vet
identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for
similar financial asseis.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
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i Exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount

in thousands of nafra Note 2017 2016
Loans and receivables 21 16,824,252 12,370,063
Cash 22 15,138,854 51,351,152

31,963,106 63,721,215

The maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and receivabies at the reporting date by type of
counterparty was:
Carrying amount

In thousonds of noirg Note 2017 2016
Distributors 21 9,928,763 7,328,483
Related parties 21 2,768,999 1,753,156
Loans to key management personne} 21 39,754 8,417
staff loans and advances 21 2,361,785 2,088,397
Registrar 21 1,724,851 1,190,610

16,824,252 12,370,063

The Company’s most significant custorner accounts for H520 million of the toans and receivables
carrying amount at 31 December 2017 (2016: 84403 mitfion).
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Nestlé Nigeria Plc
Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2017
Tegether with Directors’ and Auditar's Reports

Notes to the financial statementis

Sensitivity analysis

A strengthening of the Naira, as indicated below, against the Euro and US Dollar at 31 December would
have increased (decreased) equity and profit or foss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based
on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at
the end of the reporting period, The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particuiar interest rates,
remain constant, The analysis is performed for USD and Euro being the most significant currency risk the
Company is exposed to and an the same basis for 2014, albeit that the reasonably possible foreign
exchange rate variances were different, as indicated betow.

Effect in thousonds of Naira Equity  Profit or loss
31 December. 2017

Euro (10 percent strengthening) - 557,849
USD {1C percent strengthening) - 1,907,223
31 December, 2016

Euro {10 percent strengthening) - 1,336,801
USD {10 percent strengthening) - 9,295,429

i Interest rate risk

The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that a significant element of its exposure to changes in interest
rates on borrowings is on a fixed rate basis. This 15 achieved by entering inte ioan arrangements with
mixed interest rate sources. Variable interest rates are marked against the ruling LIBOR rates to reduce
the risk arising from interest rates.

Interest rate risk comprises interest price risk that resuits from borrowings at fixed rates and the interest
cash flow risk that results from borrowings at variable rates. The Board of Directors is responsible for
setting the overall duration and interest management targets. The Company's objective is to manage its
interest rate exposure through careful borrowing profiling and use of heterogeneous borrowing sources.

At the reporting date the interest rate prafite of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying Amount

in thousonds of Naira 2017 2016
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 3,555,444 47,063,960
Financial liabilities 2,462,140 3,964,762

6,017,584 51,028,728

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities 18,015,770 46,548,954

18,015,770 46,545,854

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Campany does not account for any fixed rate finangial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or less.
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This anatysis assumes that all other variahles, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

Profit or loss Equity
100 BP 100 BP 100G BP 100 BP
increase decrease increase decrease

31 December 2017
Variable rate instruments {180,157) 180,157 {180,157} 180,157
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (180,157) 180,157 {180,157) 180,157
31 becember 2016
Variable rate instruments {334,297) 334,297 {334,297] 334,297
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {334,297) 334,297 {334,297) 334,287

{V) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes assotiated with
the Company's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generaily accepted standards of corporate behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company's
operations.

The Company's cbiective is te manage operational risk so as te batance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to the Company’s reputation with overall eost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures
that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational
risks is assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the
development of averall Company standards for the management of operational risk in the following
areas.

» requirements for the appropriate segregation of duties, including the authorisation of transactions

» requirements for the reconciliations and monitoring of transactions

= compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements

e documentation of controls and procedures

« requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of ¢controls

and procedures to address the risks identified

s requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remediaticn action

» gdevelopment of cantingency plans

+ training and professional development

» gthical and business standards

e risk mitigation, including insurance when it is effective

Compliance with the Company's standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken
by Internal Audit. The resuits of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the
business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior
management of the Company.
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(b} Determination of fair values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for
measurement and/or disclasure purposes based on the following methods,

When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed
in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(1) Trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date. Fair value for short-term receivables
with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount if the effect of discounting is
immaterial. Fair value is determined at initial recognition and for disclosure purposes, at each annual
reporting date.

(H) Non-derivative financial liabllities

Eair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is catcutated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

{tn) sShare-based payment transactians
The fair value of the restricted stock unit plan is measured based on market prices of the awarded shares
on the grant date adjusted for the present value of dividends that participants are not entitled to receive
during the restricted period of 3 years,

Fair values

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the
statement of financial peosition, are as follows:

Assetls measured at fair value
There are no financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value. As such the fair value hierarchy
has not been disclosed.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

In thousands of naira 2017 2016
Fair value Carrying Fair value
Carrying amount amount
Long term receivables 1,921,232 1,921,232 1,678,251 1,678,251
Loans and receivables 14,903,021 14,903,021 10,691,811 10,651,811
{ash Balance 15,138,854 15,138,854 51,351,152 51,351,152

31,963,107 31,963,107 63,721,214 63,721,214

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Unsecured intercompany loan 18,015, 77¢ 18,015,770 46,549,954 46,549,954
Secured bank loans 2,462,140 2,462,140 3,864,762 3,564,762
Bank overdraft 3,714,087 3,714,087 154,582 154,582
Trade and other payables 49,055,624 419,055,624 64,662,096 64,662,096

73,247,621 713,247,621 115,331,394 115,331,394
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The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are determined based on level 3 inputs of the fair value
hierarchy. At year end, the carrying amounts of loans and receivables and trade and other payables
reasonabie estimated their fair values.

) Capital management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors moniters the
return on capital, which the Company defines as result fram operating activities divided by total
shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors aiso monitors the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be pessible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company's debt to capital ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

i thousands of naira 2017 2016
Total liabilities 101,925,851 138,707,857
Cash Balance {15,138,854) (51,351,152)
Net Debt 86,787,097 87,356,705
Total Equity 44,878,177 30,378,075
Debt to capital ratio at December 31 1.93 2.83

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. The Company
is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

30 Operating leases

The Company leases a number of offices, warehouse and accommodation facllities under operating
feases. The leases typically run for a period of 2 to 7 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date. Lease payments are usually increased at the expiration of the lease term and consequent renewal
to reflect market rentals. Advance payments outstanding in respect of these leases at year end amounts
to N524 million {2016: N669 million)

During the year ended 31 December 2017 an amount of N269 million {2016:N343 million] was
recognized as an expense in profit or loss in respect of aperating leases. Contingent rent recognized as an
axpense amounted to Nil (2016: Nil).

The warehouse and head office leases were entered into many years ago as combined leases of land and
buildings. Since the land title does not pass, the rent paid to the landlord of the building is increased to
market rent at regular intervals, and the Company does not participate in the residual value of the
building, it was determined that substantially all the risks and rewards of the building are with the
landiord. As such, the Company determined that the leases are operating leases.
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31 Contingencies

{a) Pending litigation and claims

The Company s engaged in lawsuits that have arisen in the normal course of business. The contingent
liabilities in respect of these pending litigations amounted to N2.798 million as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
N572.8million). While the contingent assets In respect of pending litigations amounted to N565.9 million for
the year then ended (2016:N251.9millign), in the opinion of the directors, and based on independent legal
advice, the Company is not expected to suffer any material loss arising from these claims. Thus no provision
has been made in these financial statements.

(b} Financial commitments

In the normat course of business, the company uses letters of credit to import materials. The total value of
open fetters of credit as at 31 December was N846.5 million (2016: N3,923 million). The Company also
abtained a bank guarantee with a value of N434 9 million (2016: Nil).

32 Related parties
[a} Parent and ultimate controtling party
As at the year ended 31 December 2017, Nesité Switzerfand {Nest!é 5.A ], the ultimate holding Company
owned 66.18% {2016: 65.74%) of the issued share capital of Nestlé Nigeria Pic.
(b} Transactions with related parties

General License Fee Agregment
Nestlé Nigeria Plc has a general license fee agreement with Societe Des Produits Nestié S.A., for the

provision of technical and other support services. The agreement was made with the approval of the
National Office for Technology Acquisition and Promotion and payments are made to Seciete Des Produits
Nestlé S.A. The agreement was renewed in 2015 for a peried of three (3} years, with effect from january 1,
2015, The technica! fee recognised in the current year was N9.204 billion {2016: N6.862 billion). See Note
1la and 11hb.

Shared Service Agreement

Nestié Nigeria Plc also has an agreement with Nestle Central and West Africa Limited {Nestté CWA} whereby
Nestlé CWA provides and charges for certain common shared services to the Company at a service cost.
Service cost as defined by the terms of the contract means: all direct and indirect expenses charges,
overheads and administration costs reasonably incurred by Nestlé CWA from time to time during the {erm
of the agreement In providing the shared services, plus a 4% on the reimbursable cost of Nestlé Business
Services and Operational and Commaercial Services as allecated amang the various countries in the region.
The services provided by Nestlé CWA includes transactionary services as well as planning and management
functions.

sSourcing of Raw Materials and Finished Producis
Additianally, the Company sources part of its raw materiats and finished products through companies
related to its uitimate holding company, Nestlé S.A., incorparated in Switzerland.

Agency and Administration Service Agreement

Nestlé Nigeria Plc has an agreement with Cereal Partners Nigeria Limited {CPNL} for the importation,
warehousing and distribution of breakfast cereal. Nestlé Nigeria Plc provides these functions to CPNL and
obtains re-imbursement for all costs incurred in respect of these functions.
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{c} Transactions with key management personnel

Loan to key management personnel

New loan of N51.174 million was issued to key management personnel during the year ended 31 December
2017 {2016: 9.500 millien) which include interest and non-interest bearing facilities and the lpans are
repayable in full over the agreed repayment period which could be short or long term. As at 31 December
2017, the balance outstanding was N39.754 million {2016: N8.417 millien) and is inciuded in trade and
gther receivables. (See note 21}

{d} Key management personnel compensation

In addition to their salaries, the Company also provides non-cash benefits to directors and executive
officers, and contributes to a post-employment defined contribution plan on their behalf. tn accordance
with the terms of the plan, directers and executive officers are entitled access to the fund when they retire,
Executive officers also participate in the Campany's long service awards programme. This programme
awards a certain sum of cash benefit which accrues to the recipient on graduated periods of uninterrupted
service.

Key management personnel compensatien comprised.

in thousands of naira 2017 2016
short-term employee benefits 58,195 76,175
Contribution to computsery pensien fund scheme 9,890 14,025
Defined contribution gratuity scheme 10,732 15,065
Share based payments 58,076 109,181
176,893 214,446

{e} Other related party transactions

(i

_—

Amount due to other related companies represents batances due on current accounts maintained with
companies in the Nestié Group for the importation of Property, plant and equipment (PPE), raw materials,
finished products and services. The aggregate value of transactions and outstanding batances relating to
these entities were as follows;

intercompany payables

Nature of Transaction value Year  Balance gutstanding as at
In thousands of naira transaction ended 31 December 31 December
Related Party 2017 2016 2017 2016
Nestié Ghana Limited Finished goods 1,925,623 1,763,317 61,122 1,702,723
Nestlé World Trade )
Corporation Limited PPE/ Services 5,414,430 4,240,050 - 6,048,554
Nestlé Netherlands Finished goods 1,299,036 2,015,810 2,251,984 1,973,899
MNestié France Limited Finished goods 2,120,310 1,936,256 262,709 1,907,764
Societe Des Produits Nestié S.A Services 7,965,512 6,999,837 3,145,496 8,013,461
Nestlé Central and West Africa Services 5,266,051 5,834,074 1,392,497 9,521,876
wyeth Nutritional Singapore Finished Goods 1,334,378 669,423 - 2,771,261
Others 5,752,356 5,172,843 1,932,404 5,671,353

31,577,696 28,631,610 9,045,212 38,610,893

Amount due from other related companies represents balances due on current accounts maimained with
companies within the Nestlé Group for the export of finished goods and provision of services. The aggregate
value of transactions and outstanding balances refating to these entities were as follows;
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(ii} Intercompany receivables
in thousands of nairg

Transaction value Year  Balance outstanding as at

Mature of transaction ended 31 December 31 Dagember

Related Party 2017 2016 2017 2016
Nestlé Toge Finished goods and Services 3,077 60,333 - -

Nestlé Ghana Finished goods and Services 2,093,226 1,026,537 582,189 683,990
Nestlé Niger Finished goods and Services 287,341 92,255 116,896 11,528
Nest|é Senegal Finished goods and Services §,334 77,497 - -

Mestié Cameroun Finished goods and Services 12,081 1,202 38,578 106,157
Nestie Middle East Services - 8,051 133,840 160,641
CP Nigeria Services 240,633 220,953 894,990 284,370
QOthers Finished goods and Services 1,268,072 1,425,785 1,002,506 496,470

3,822,764 2,912,613 2,768,999 1,753,156

All outstanding balances with these related parties are to be settled in cash within six months of the
reporting date. None of these balances are secured nor inferest bearing.

(iii} Nestlé Nigeria Trust {CPFA} Limited

Nestlé Nigeria Trust [CPFA) Limited {"NNTL') previously called Nestlé Nigeria Provident Fund Limited, was
incorporated by the Company and is a duly registered Closed Pension Fund Admintstrator whose sole
activity is the administration of the pension and defined contribution gratuity scheme for both employees
and former employees of Nestlé Nigeria Pic.

Nestié Nigeria Trust (CPFA) Limited is an unconsclidated structured entity licensed hy the Nationaf Pension
Commission {PENCOM) to conduct the business of a closed pension fund administrator. The activities of
Nestlé Nigeria Trust {CPFA) Limited are regulated by the National Pension Commission {PENCOM} rather
than by voting rights and the funds are maraged in accordance with the PENCOM guidelines. The benefits
arising from the activities of Nestlé Nigeria Trust [CPFA) Limited accrue principally to members of the
provident, pension and defined contribution gratuity schemes and the company has no exposures to
variable returns arising from its involvemnent.

The Company's residual interest in Nestié Nigeria Trust {CPFA] Limited is immaterial. The funds and assets of
the provident, pension are held by an independent licensed pension fund custodian in line with the Pension
Reform Act, 2004.

The company supports the sourcing of resources to Mestlé Nigeria Trust (CPFA) Limited and intends to
continue to provide support into the future.

33 Events after the reporting date
There are no significant subsequent events which could have had a material effect on the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 December 2017 that has not been adequately provided for or disclesed in the
finangial statements.
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Value Added Statement

In thousands of naira

Revenue

Brought in materials and services
Lecal
Imported

Finance Income

Value Added

Distribution of Value Added:

To Emgployees:
-  Employees as wages and salaries
and end of service benefits

To Providers of Finance:
- Finance Costs
Company tax

Retained in the business:
- Depreciation of tangible assets
- Deferred tax

- Impairment loss on tangible assets

- Profit transfered to reserves

Nestlé Nigeria Pic

Annual Report and Financial Statements -- 31 December 2617

Together with Directors’ and Auditer's Reparts

2017 % 2016 %
244,151,411 181,910,977
(92,341,151) (70,166,096)
(66,867,731) (46,737,337)

84,942,529 £5,007,544
6,239,371 4,199,314
91,181,900 100 69,206,858 100
22,758,609 25 20,817,867 30
15,109,062 17 20,864,243 30
7,886,419 9 15,000,650 22
6,485,547 7 5,976,340 9
5,218,533 572 {1,377,210) (2}
33,723,730 37 7,924,968 11
51,181,900 100 £9,206,858 100
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Financial Summary

In thousands of nafra 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Funds Employed
Share Capital 396,328 396,328 396,328 396,328 396,328
Share Premium 32,262 32,262 32,262 32,262 32,262
Share based payment reserve 147,236 126,480 150,466 44,637 26,585
Retained Earnings 44,302,351 30,323,005 37,428,018 35,466,416 40,135,626
Shareholder's Fund 44,878,177 30,878,075 38,007,074 35,939,643 40,594,801
Current Liabitities 79,680,495 121,033,434 59,731,857 44,638,052 33,233,095
Non-current Ltiabilities 22,245,456 17,674,423 21,476,122 25,484,372 34,379,584
146,804,128 169,585,932 119,215,053 106,062,067 108,207,480
Asset Employed
Non Current assets 72,504,953 97,736,155 70,500,367 68,672,737 66,451,672
Current assets 74,299,175 71,849,777 48,714,686 37,389,330 41,755,808
146,804,128 169,585,532 115,215,053 106,062,067 108,207,480
in thousands of naira 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Revenue 244,151,411 181,910,977 151,271,526 143,328,987 133,084,076
Profit before income tax 46,828,682 21,548,408 29,322,477 24,445,978 26,047,590
profit for the year 33,723,730 7,924,968 23,736,777 22,235,640 22,258,279
Other comprehensive
incomne, net of tax - -
Declared dividend™* 19,816,406 15,060,469 21,798,049 26,950,313 15,853,125
Per 50k share data:
Basic earnings per share 42,55 10.00 29,95 N28.05 N28.08
piluted earnings per share 42.55 10.00 29.95 N28.05 N28.08
Declared dividend per share 25.00 19.00 27.50 N34.00 N20.00
Nef assets per share 56.62 38.96 47.95 NAE.34 N51.21

* Declared dividend represents the intenm dividend declared during the year {N13.00 and N2.00 from the
balance of the pioneer profits as at 31 December 2015 and retained earnings as at 31 December 2015
respectively) and final dividend proposed for the preceding year but declared during the current year.

The financial information presented above reflects historical summaries based on International Financial
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